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EXHIBIT A – APPEAL 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B – EMAIL EVIDENCE 

Emails Between Plaintiff and Defendant in Chronological Order 

[Client’s Name Redacted] 

From: suzanne@lawyer.com 
Sent: Monday, February 5, 2018 10:20 AM 
To: Ben@Recciuslaw.com 
Subject: Looking for contingency fee tenant's lawyer 
 
Hi Ben, 
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I got your email from the Facebook Group, LA Attorney Network Member List.  I was just 
referred a case in which the landlord hasn’t returned the deposit, paid relocation fees or properly 
apportioned utilities to a tenant, which I was told has an attorney’s fees clause. I believe that the 
tenant-potential client is looking for contingency. Is this something you’d be interested in and do 
you pay referral fees? If not, do you have someone else you recommend? Thanks!! 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Suzanne Raina Natbony, Esq. 
 
 
From: Benjamin Reccius [mailto:ben@recciuslaw.com]  
Sent: Monday, February 05, 2018 12:36 PM 
To: suzanne@lawyer.com 
Subject: RE: Looking for contingency fee tenant's lawyer 
 
Suzanne, 
 
Thanks so much for reaching out! I actually just got done dealing with a security deposit issue so 
this is something that I’d certainly be interested in.  I do pay referral fees and do contingency 
agreements. You can pass along my information and have them call me.  
 
 
Benjamin S. Reccius, Esq. 
 
From: suzanne@lawyer.com 
Sent: Monday, February 5, 2018 1:53 PM 
To: 'Benjamin Reccius' 
Subject: RE: Looking for contingency fee tenant's lawyer 
 
Hi Benjamin, 
 
Thanks for getting back to me! Do you mind if we please have a quick chat? 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Suzanne Raina Natbony, Esq. 
 
 
On Feb 6, 2018, at 10:49 AM, Benjamin Reccius <ben@recciuslaw.com> wrote: 
Good morning Suzanne, 
  
Just wanted to let you know that I spoke to my partner and we’d be willing to do a 25% percent 
referral fee for the security deposit/relocation fee case. Again, thank you for reaching out and 
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just let me know if that’s agreeable. I’m available this afternoon if you would like to chat about 
anything!   
  
Sincerely, 
  
Benjamin S. Reccius, Esq. 
 
 
From: suzanne@lawyer.com <suzanne@lawyer.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 06, 2018 11:26 AM 
To: Benjamin Reccius <ben@recciuslaw.com> 
Subject: Re: Looking for contingency fee tenant's lawyer 
 
Great, thanks, I’ll forward info and make an intro ASAP. 
Best, 
 
Suzanne Natbony 
 
From: suzanne@lawyer.com <suzanne@lawyer.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, March 13, 2018 7:22 PM 
To: Gregg Fowler 
Subject: [CLIENT] case was referred to Benjamin Reccius 
  
FYI, I think [CLIENT] retained Ben. He seems great, I just referred him another LL-T case.  He 
is paying me a 25% referral fee. Thank you! Hugs and hope you are feeling better!  
  
 
From: Benjamin Reccius <ben@recciuslaw.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, March 13, 2018 3:51 PM 
To: suzanne@lawyer.com 
Subject: RE: Unlawful Detainer defense work? 
  
Suzanne, 
  
Good afternoon! I most certainly do! Just let me know the details…. 
  
And again—thank you so much for putting me in touch with [CLIENT]. We’re going to get him 
all taken care of! 
  
Benjamin S. Reccius, Esq. 
RECCIUS LAW 
General Partner/Founder 
 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
--------------------- 
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On Jan 18, 2021, at 1:38 PM, Suzanne Natbony <suzanne@lawyer.com> wrote: 
 
Hi Ben, 
  
I’ve been texting you and your mailbox is full. Is everything OK? What’s the outcome of the 
[CLIENT] matter? 
  
Sincerely, 
Suzanne Raina Natbony, Esq. 
 
 
On Jan 19, 2021, at 5:12 PM, Benjamin Reccius <ben@recciuslaw.com> wrote: 
Suzanne, 
 
Mr. [CLIENT] informed me that you’ve been attempting to contact him. He has asked me to ask 
you to please stop. Any future communication can go through me. Thank you.  
Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
On Tue, Jan 19, 2021 at 5:17 PM suzanne@lawyer.com <suzanne@lawyer.com> wrote: 
I’ve been contacting him and you because he is a friend of a friend and this and this is the first 
case that I referred to you, so I want to make sure it went OK, and we agreed that you would pay 
me a referral fee. What was the outcome of the case? 
Best, 
 
Suzanne Natbony 
[Cell phone number] 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
From: Benjamin Reccius <ben@recciuslaw.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 19, 2021 6:30 PM 
To: suzanne@lawyer.com 
Subject: Re: Reply to LinkedIn Invitation 
 
Everything went fine, thank you.  
I don't recall us ever formalizing any agreement in writing or obtaining [CLIENT’s] consent after 
full disclosure of terms of the division which is required by Rule 1.5.1 (Fee Divisions Among 
Lawyers). Here is the full rule: 
 
(a) Lawyers who are not in the same law firm shall not divide a fee for legal services unless:  
  (1) the lawyers enter into a written agreement to divide the fee;  
  (2) the client has consented in writing, either at the time the lawyers enter into the agreement to 
divide the fee or as soon thereafter as reasonably* practicable, after a full written* disclosure to 
the client of: 



 

Page 5 of 27 
 

    (i) the fact that a division of fees will be made;  
    (ii) the identity of the lawyers or law firms* that are parties to the division; and 
    (iii) the terms of the division; and  
  (3) the total fee charged by all lawyers is not increased solely by reason of the agreement to 
divide fees.  
(b) This rule does not apply to a division of fees pursuant to court order.    
 
 
From: Suzanne Natbony <suzanne@lawyer.com> 
Date: January 19, 2021 at 7:08:34 PM PST 
To: ben@recciuslaw.com 
Subject: FW: [CLIENT] case was referred to Benjamin Reccius 
 
Hi Ben, 
  
Let me refresh your memory. See below. You told me that you would pay a 25% referral fee. If 
you didn’t put it in the contract with [CLIENT], then that’s on you. It doesn’t mean that you and 
I didn’t have an agreement that you are obligated to comply with or face consequences. That’s 
the only reason that I referred the case to you. I emailed you that was a requirement and you 
agreed and told me 25% and as such I emailed that to Gregg and wrote it in my notes: 
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So what was the outcome of the case and when will I be receiving my referral fee or whatever 
you want to call it? 
  
Sincerely, 
Suzanne Raina Natbony, Esq. 
  
 
 
On Jan 20, 2021, at 6:19 PM, Benjamin Reccius <ben@recciuslaw.com> wrote: 
Wow— 
I was expecting more of her. 
This is seriously all she’s got?  
 
Begin forwarded message: 
 
From: Benjamin Reccius <ben@recciuslaw.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 20, 2021 7:55 PM 
To: Suzanne Natbony <suzanne@lawyer.com> 
Subject: Re: [CLIENT] case was referred to Benjamin Reccius 
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Let me review our correspondence and I will follow up with you.  
Sent from my iPhone 
  
 
From: Suzanne Natbony <suzanne@lawyer.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 21, 2021 3:56 PM 
To: 'Benjamin Reccius' <ben@recciuslaw.com> 
Subject: RE: [CLIENT] case was referred to Benjamin Reccius 
  
Thanks, I would hope that since we both exercise our professional responsibilities in a close-knit 
community, you will do the right the thing and pay what you agreed to pay, whether it’s a gift or 
marketing, consulting or referral fee, etc.  
  
Not only do I spend a lot of time on intake and vetting these claims, and handholding and 
following up with clients along the way, I am also an entrepreneur - the only way that I can 
afford to launch startups (right now I am focused on a class II medical device that could save 
lives), is through my legal work referring cases. Aliant LLP and Merino Yebri LLP are 
honorable and pay referral fees, along with many other attorneys that I refer to. I thought that 
you would be my new Go-To landlord tenant attorney based on your representation that you 
would pay me a 25% referral fee.   
  
And I’m not sure who you meant to email your previous email to, but you should know that I 
probably have a lot more than what you think, and I am not afraid to use all evidence and 
resources until a fair resolution is reached. I will not walk away from this. Don’t think you can 
brush this under the rug. 
  
Again, if you don’t pay what you promised by the end of this week or propose a reasonable 
payment plan, I will take any and all legal action. I hope that will not become necessary. Please 
govern yourself accordingly. 
  
Nothing in this email shall be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any of my rights or 
remedies, whether legal or equitable, all of which are expressly reserved.  This letter is a 
confidential legal communication and is not for publication.  Any publication, dissemination or 
broadcast of any portion of this email will constitute a breach of such confidence and a violation 
of the Copyright Act, and you are not authorized to publish this letter in whole or part absent our 
express written authorization. 
  
Sincerely, 
Suzanne Raina Natbony, Esq. 
 
 
From: Suzanne Natbony <suzanne@lawyer.com> 
Date: February 4, 2021 at 11:06:05 AM PST 
To: Benjamin Reccius <ben@recciuslaw.com> 
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Cc: lawyer@solveandwin.com 
Subject: RE: [CLIENT] case was referred to Benjamin Reccius 
 
Hi Ben, 
  
This is the last time that I am emailing you. The attached complaint will be filed against you, 
your previous firm, and your current law firm on Monday, 2/8, if we cannot reach a resolution. 
Again, you don’t get to shirk your responsibility and defraud me out of a referral fee over a 
bogus excuse. You also don’t get to renege on our deal by attempting to block me from reaching 
the client, whom I spoke and emailed with numerous times throughout this case. I will subpoena 
witnesses and documents. I relied on your promise and only referred to you based on your 
representation. It’s clear by my email that my intention was to refer to someone who pays 
referral fees and you told me you pay 25%.  
  
I have ample experience in litigating my own matters when others have tried to take advantage of 
my kindness, generosity and hard-work, and since I never even met you in person (despite 
offering to meetup), you have no sympathy from me.  In fact your avoidant and passive 
aggressive behavior is only making it worse for you. I am filing a lawsuit against your current 
law firm since you worked there when you received the payment of the fee. 
  
As a dedicated, dependable and principled attorney who fights for justice for my clients, I don’t 
let shyster lawyers get away with dishonesty, not honoring agreements or fraud. 
  
Do the right thing and pay what you agreed to pay. You proceed at your own peril if you 
continue to try to weasel out of deal and stick your head in the sand. 
  
Sincerely, 
 
Suzanne Raina Natbony, Esq. 
 
 
From: Benjamin Reccius <ben@recciuslaw.com>  
Sent: Thursday, February 04, 2021 12:44 PM 
To: Suzanne Natbony <suzanne@lawyer.com> 
Subject: Re: [CLIENT] case was referred to Benjamin Reccius 
 
Suzanne, 
 
 
I have researched the issue of referral fees, including reading controlling case law and contacting 
the state bar hotline. The pivotal issue (which was confirmed by the bar) is that regardless of any 
communication between us, the client’s informed, written consent to the referral fee was never 
obtained.  
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I spoke with Mr. [CLIENT]. He authorized me to inform you that he will not consent to a 25% 
referral fee based on the amount of time and effort I put into the case over the past three years. 
He is willing to sign a declaration attesting to this.  
 
Thank you 
 
 
From: suzanne@lawyer.com <suzanne@lawyer.com>  
Sent: Thursday, February 04, 2021 1:30 PM 
To: Benjamin Reccius <ben@recciuslaw.com> 
Subject: Re: [CLIENT] case was referred to Benjamin Reccius 
 
I researched this matter too. See you in court. 
See: Barnes, Crosby, Fitzgerald & Zeman, LLP v. Ringler 
Court of Appeal, Fourth District, Division 3, California. December 19, 2012 212 Cal.App.4th 
172 
 
 
Additional Communications Through TurboCourt – Ms. Natbony’s Offer to Settle: 
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Defendant offers NO Offer or Counteroffer: 
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EXHIBIT C – EXAMPLE OF WORK THAT PLAINTIFF’S LAW FIRM PERFORMED FOR 
CLIENT 

 

From: suzanne@lawyer.com <suzanne@lawyer.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 06, 2018 11:26 AM 
To: ben@recciuslaw.com 
Subject: Fwd: dhalia 
 
FYI  
Best, 
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Suzanne Natbony 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 
 
From: "Fowler, Gregg"  
Date: February 6, 2018 at 6:26:11 AM PST 
To: "suzanne@lawyer.com" <suzanne@lawyer.com> 
Subject: dhalia 
 
Here is what I would do on Dahlia:  I would sign a contingency retainer for 40% of ALL 
money.  I use all because you want 40% of the security deposit when you get it back.  If you 
check my emails, I think I put a bump up to 45% within 90 days of trial, which is my standard 
operating procedure.   
  
Issues:  Security Deposit- interest due from day 1, rate set by rent stabilization board.  Did 
[Client] did a demand for inspection and opportunity to remedy?  If so, she had to let him repair 
at his own expense.  This is a treble damage statute for failure to return timely (21 
days?);  Failure to pay interest and withholding are both rent stabilization violations.  There is a 
minimum statutory fine of $5,000. 
  
Next, the failure to have a third meter for the laundry unit.  She never disclosed this issue and the 
laundry room utilities were on their unit.  The city is aware of this issue and so is she.   
  
Both of the foregoing, are slam dunk claims.   
  
Third, constructive evictions.  Improper ventilation of stove in other unit, doors didn’t lock, 
mold, etc.  She sucked as a landlord but I am certain it wasn’t as bad a [Client] says.  This may 
or may not sell to a jury but it is not a slam dunk. 
  
Now, I would end a demand letter before you refer this out for litigation.  I would charge a 20k 
retainer on this case if the landlord came to me.  The harder she fights this, the better in that you 
get paid by the hour per the Statute.  List your hourly rate a $500 per hour.  Keep track of your 
time, because you may need to make a demand for later.  If she gets a lawyer he will tell her to 
pay.   
  
Anyway good luck.  If you want me to look at a demand letter let me know.   
  
Gregg A. Fowler 
  



 

Page 13 of 27 
 

EXHIBIT D – AMOUNT OF TIME THAT SOLVE & WIN SPENT ON THIS CLIENT’S 
CASE 
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EXHIBIT E – EMAILS WITH MR. [CLIENT] 

From: On Behalf Of [Client]  
Sent: Friday, March 02, 2018 8:37 AM  
To: Suzanne Natbony <suzanne@lawyer.com>  
Subject: Dahlia Representation  
 
Met with Eric in person. And we're still discussing for sure. But not sure he has the bandwidth to take 
this case on. Think he sought cleaner case for violation of tenant law re: eviction.  
Still strongly considering Ben too. As I like him even though he has less experience. Though my wife 
[Client] is wondering if there might be a female lawyer who we might be able to find to represent us? 
Due to the particular issues and considerations that happened during our pregnancy and the way 
[Landlord] interacts differently. Think that might be good consideration too.  
Do you think you might be able to help us find ?  
Thanks!  
 
On Fri, Mar 2, 2018 at 9:10 AM, Suzanne Natbony <suzanne@lawyer.com> wrote:  
Hi [Client],  
 
I reached out to over 10 lawyers about this case. Unfortunately, I could not find a female. I would go 
with Ben, if Eric can’t take it. If you need a female perspective to consider the issues, I would be happy 
to chime in and consult with Ben. I think that getting on a call with Ben and I to discuss with you and 
your wife might be helpful.  
 
Sincerely,  
Suzanne Raina Natbony, Esq.  

EXHIBIT F – CEASE AND DESIST LETTER TO MR. RECCIUS 
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EXHIBIT G – EMAIL WITH RECCIUS RETAINER TO UNRELATED CLIENT IN THIS 
CASE  

---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: Benjamin Reccius <ben@recciuslaw.com> 
Date: Wed, Mar 21, 2018 at 9:17 AM 
Subject: RecciusLawRetainer__FlatFee__[redacted]pdf 
To: [redacted] 
 
Hey good morning buddy. As promised here is a copy of our retainer for the services we 
discussed yesterday. Let me know if you want to chat or have any questions 
 
Benjamin S. Reccius, Esq. 
RECCIUS LAW 
General Partner/Founder 
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EXHIBIT H – REQUEST TO POSTPONE TRIAL  
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EXHIBIT I – RECCIUS’ SUBPOENA 
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EXHIBIT J – ATTORNEY FEES INVOICE 

 

 

 


